
Workforce Panel  
 

Dear Member, 
 

You are invited to attend the meeting of the Workforce Panel to be held as follows for 
the transaction of the business indicated. 
David Wilcock 

Monitoring Officer 

 
DATE: Tuesday, 23 November 2021 

 
TIME:  12.15 pm 

 
VENUE: Salford Suite, Salford Civic Centre, Chorley Road, Swinton 

 
In accordance with ‘The Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 
2014,’ the press and public have the right to film, video, photograph or record 

this meeting.  
 

AGENDA 

 
1   Apologies for Absence  

 

 

2   Declarations of Interest  

 

 

3   Minutes of the Meeting Held on 28th September 2021  

 
(Pages 1 - 2) 

4   Leadership Appointment  

 
(Pages 3 - 20) 

 

Contact Officer:   
Carol Eddleston E-Mail: carol.eddleston@salford.gov.uk 

Public Document Pack



This page is intentionally left blank



Workforce Panel Meeting Held on 28th September 2021 in the Salford 

Suite, Civic Centre, Chorley Road, Swinton. 

Meeting started at 11:35am 

Meeting ended at 12:07pm 

Present in Person 
Councillors Hinds (in the chair). Bentham, Cammell, Kelly, Lancaster and McCusker. 

In Attendance in Person 
Sam Betts (Assistant Director HR & OD), Tom Stannard (Chief Executive) 

In Attendance via MS Teams 

Muna Abdel-Aziz (Director of Public Health), Carol Eddleston (Democratic Services) and Catherine 

Sharples (Strategic Manager HR & OD) 

 

1. Apologies for Absence 

Apologies for absence were submitted on behalf of City Mayor Paul Dennett and Councillors August 
and Merry. 

2. Declarations of Interest 

There were no declarations of interest. 

3. Minutes of the Meeting Held on 25th May 2021 

The minutes of the meeting held on 25th May 2021 were approved as a correct record. 

4. Workforce Equality, Diversity and Inclusion Strategy 

At the invitation of Councillor Hinds, Lead Member for Finance and Support Services, the Assistant 

Director and Strategic Manager presented the report and strategy which had been developed based 

on feedback over a period of time from a range of stakeholders including discussions with staff 

equality groups, the joint trade unions, the Salford 100 staff engagement network, senior leaders 

and elected members. The strategy was also closely aligned to the City Equality strategy as almost 
60% of the Council workforce were also residents in the city.  

There were four priority areas within the draft strategy:  

 Actively developing our leaders.  

 Improving Education, awareness, and training.  

 Improving workforce intelligence, insight, and representation.  

 Reducing the gender and ethnicity pay gaps.  

Within each of the areas there were a number of areas of focus and more indepth actions plans 
would be co-developed with the workforce to ensure delivery of the priorities.  

RESOLVED, THAT: 

1) The Workforce Equality, Diversity and Inclusion Strategy be approved, and 

2) The plans for a launch event in October 2021 for the Salford Equality Strategy and the 
Workforce Equality, Diversity and Inclusion Strategy be noted. 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



5. Exclusion of the Public (Part 2) 

RESOLVED, THAT: under Section 100a(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public be excluded 

from the meeting for the following items of business on the grounds that they included the likely 

disclosure of exempt information as specified in the relevant paragraphs of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to 
the Act. 

6. Senior Leadership Appointments and Remuneration 

The Assistant Director presented a report which related to the application of a market enhancement 
to a specific role within the council and to the review of a single job role within the council.  

RESOLVED, THAT the Workforce Panel approve the recommendations outlined in the report. 

 

 

. 

Page 2



 1 

 
Part 1: Open to the Public – Item No. 
 

 

REPORT OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE 

 

TO WORKFORCE PANEL  

ON 23RD  NOVEMBER 2021

 

TITLE: SENIOR LEADERSHIP POST  
 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 

1. That the Workforce Panel approves the new redesigned role and post of 
Assistant Director Skills, Work & Inclusive Economy.  

 
2. That the Workforce Panel agrees the membership of the Appointment Panel 

for the post of Assistant Director Skills, Work & Inclusive Economy. 
 

3. That the Appointment Panel(s) be delegated to agree the final details of the 

recruitment and selection arrangements as follows: - 
(a) Agree the role profile. 

(b) Agree an external recruitment approach. 
(c) Agree the detail of the selection process. 
(d) Agree the use of external executive search and support for the process. 

(e) Appoint a suitable candidate and notify Cabinet Members allowing any 
objections to the offer to the City Mayor. 

 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 
 

This report sets out the approach to achieve changes to leadership arrangements 
and responsibilities together with the realignment of functions to ensure the delivery 

of our ambitions outlined in the Inclusive Economy and Skills and Employment 
Strategies.  It also outlines the proposed arrangements and process in relation to the 
recruitment, selection and appointment to the newly created post of Assistant 

Director Skills, Work, and Inclusive Economy. 

 

Page 3

Agenda Item 4



 2 

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS:  

Future Work and Skills Strategy and Investment Business Case - Cabinet Report 9th 
November 2021 

 

KEY DECISION: NO 

 

DETAILS: 
 
1. Introduction  

 

Whilst previous changes to leadership arrangements have moved towards the creation 
of a sustainable organisational form it has always been acknowledged that the 

resulting organisational structures would not be set in stone and would be flexible and 
adaptive to respond to a constantly changing environment. 

 
This report sets out the approach to achieve changes to leadership arrangements 
and responsibilities together with the realignment of functions to ensure the delivery 

of our ambitions outlined in the Inclusive Economy and Skills and Employment 
Strategies.  It also outlines the proposed arrangements and process in relation to the 

recruitment, selection and appointment to the newly created post of Assistant 
Director Skills, Work, and Inclusive Economy. 
 
2. Background 

 

Salford’s existing Employment and Skills Strategy was published in 2017 – and 
focussed on three strategic priorities: young people achieving and progressing into 
education and work; adults connecting to and progressing in employment and training; 

and employers creating accessible, quality, and sustainable opportunities. 
 

It is now time to review and restate the City’s commitment to education, work, and 
skills.  At a macro level the ongoing COVID19 pandemic, Brexit, climate change, 
continued pressure on public sector finances, and technological innovation have all 

impacted on the education, skills and work opportunities and challenges for residents, 
employers, and education providers in Salford.  At a micro level, the resources and 

focus of the council’s skills and work and business support teams have reduced over 
time, funding is now largely driven by GM and national programmes, and important 
employment and growth sectors in Salford have changed. It is imperative we respond 

quickly to reshape our skills and work commitments, priorities, and resources to 
respond to those opportunities and challenges.  

 
To truly become a Learning City, our skills and work strategy must embrace a 
commitment to lifelong learning for everyone living and working in Salford.  Young 

people are facing a 50-year career, and this will most likely mean movement within 
and between companies, across sectors, and geographically.  Similarly, many adults 

– whether in the workforce or seeking to re-enter work – are considering a change of 

Page 4



 3 

sector or career path.  This requires a different approach to a city-wide skills and 
work offer. 
 

There are three core outcomes which will underpin our vision: 
 

 Improving and increasing the quality of local jobs – focussing on the 

foundational economy, and sectors such as hospitality, leisure, retail, and 
including entry level opportunities in the public and VCSE sectors.  The GM 

growth sectors in advanced manufacturing, digital and health tech innovation, 
construction also give opportunities to invest in an increased supply of quality 

local jobs for local residents with the appropriate technical skills.  
 
 Improve the capacity and ability of the local education and technical 

skills providers to engage with academically vulnerable young people and 

low (or no) skilled adults.  The focus must be to re-engage them in learning 

with a view to entering sustainable and good quality employment.  
 
 Progressive improvements in the skills profile of Salford residents.  

Measured by year-on-year reductions in the people across all age groups with 
no qualifications, and at the same time a progressive increase of people with 

higher level (Level 3 or 4) qualifications.  
 

Achieving these outcomes will require a strong city-wide partnership between 
education and skills providers, employers, and businesses, as well as the city 
council and other anchor institutions across the city.  Funding for skills has 

changed considerably over the past 10 years.  Much is now provided direct to 
providers via centrally funded programmes, linked to specific skill-based 

outcomes, and in some cases delegated via the GMCA, very little funding is 
provided direct to councils or via public subsidy.  Salford Council no longer 
directly provides adult education or other skills-based provision – and except the 

Apprenticeship Levy has no directly delegated skills budget. 
 

The council can facilitate the local skills partnership, but our success will depend 
on a strong ‘partnership triangle’ between employers, education and skills 
providers and the anchor organisations.   This approach provides an opportunity 

to strengthen some of the existing relationships within the city – particularly to 
invest in developing stronger links between FE providers, and between FE, HE, 

and employers across the city.   None of our approach to growing our skills offer 
will work if we do not at the same time invest in developing much stronger 
relationships with employers across the city, including by investing our time to 

develop stronger partnerships with the GM Chamber of Commerce and local 
chamber in Salford, and with a wider set of employer forums, including SME and 

social enterprise employer forums.  
 
Initial priorities for investment are firstly, an enhanced service to build skills and 

employment opportunities with a scaled level of support, the second investment 
priority is in Salford’s Learning City Partnership and the third investment priority is 
for building employer partnerships. 

 

Page 5



 4 

Building on the excellent business links that already exist we will seek to better 
understand employer views on workforce, recruitment, and skills issues. We will 
work with employers on solutions as part of an integrated labour market service 

approach focused on matching skills supply to demand from employers.     
 

We will also increase our efforts to get all employers to buy into our vision to 
create a fairer, greener, healthier Salford, to help create a better future for Salford 
residents.  Practically this will be about employers signing up to the city mayor’s 

charter, offering jobs and work experience to local people, opening their 
recruitment practices, offering pre recruitment training and guaranteed interviews, 

skills development, increasing local supply chains etc.   
 
This is undertaken at a limited level now and the provision of an additional 1FTE 

resource will enable us to give more focus to this area of activity and to have a 
greater impact. 

 
3. Organisational Infrastructure 

 

Delivery of this extensive strategic plan and ambition will require dedicated 

leadership and expertise within the council. The recent appointment of a new 
Strategic Director of Place with significant experience in this area provides an 

opportunity to lead this strategy through the Place Directorate but with 
collaborative working across all areas of the council. It is proposed to create a 

new Assistant Director post in the Place Directorate to lead this work with 
responsibility to: 

 

 Develop the new target operating model through our established change 

methodology and co-design with those impacted by the changes and lead the 

realignment/redesign of the functions to best deliver the ambitions and 
priorities. 

 Recruit and develop the staff team needed to deliver the key priorities 
identified. 

 Build partnerships with employers, with the valuable assistance of the 

Executive Support Member for Skills, Work and Business. 

 Further develop and deliver the strategy and ambitions by building the 

partnership triangle arrangements. 
 

These functions will be aligned under the new Assistant Director Skills, Work, and 
Inclusive Economy post, as illustrated below, with a phased implementation by 

April 2022 to allow for the recruitment process to take place throughout late 
autumn 2021.  Whilst the new Assistant Director post will report to the Strategic 

Director for Place, it will also retain a ‘dotted line’ of formal accountability to the 

Strategic Director People for any Ofsted related accountabilities and for alignment 
with the city’s education improvement strategy.  This post will support the political 

portfolio of the Executive Support Member for Skills, Work and Business who is 
leading on the employer engagement strategy and the Executive Support Member 

for Education and Learning who supports the 16 plus work. Investment in this post 
will be circa £100k including employer oncosts.  

 

Page 6



 5 

 
 

 
4. Recruitment Arrangements 

 

4.1 Appointment Panel – Assistant Director Skills, Work & Inclusive Economy 

It is one of the responsibilities of the Workforce Panel to establish a Committee or 

Sub-Committee to act as the appointment panel for the recruitment and 
appointment to external posts at this level.   

In respect of this post, it is suggested that the Panel be convened from the 
membership of the Workforce Panel as follows: - 

• Deputy City Mayor (Portfolio lead for Housing, Property and Regeneration) 
• Lead Member for Inclusive Economy, Anti-Poverty and Equalities 
• Executive Support Member for Workforce and Industrial Relations 

• Executive Support Member for Skills, Work and Business 

• Leader of the Opposition or nominated representative 

The Panel will be advised by the Strategic Director Place, the Strategic Director 

for People, and the Assistant Director for HR & OD. 

The Appointment Panel will have delegated responsibility to agree the final details 
of the recruitment and selection arrangements as follows: - 

(a) Agree the role profile. 
(b) Agree an external recruitment approach. 

(c) Agree the detail of the selection process. 
(d) Agree the use of external executive search and selection support for the 
process. 

(e) Appoint a suitable candidate and notify Cabinet Members allowing any 
objections to the offer to the City Mayor. 

Assistant Director

Skills, Work and Inclusive Economy

Skills & Work
Apprenticeships 
& Employment 

Pathways

Raising 
Participation

Business 
Engagement

Learning & Skil ls 
Partnerships

Page 7



 6 

 
It is proposed that this post is advertised on an external basis in the MJ and the 
greater.jobs website with external support for the executive search and selection 

process. 
 
5. Job Evaluation & Remuneration 

 
As detailed in the Pay Policy Statement the council uses the chief officer job 

evaluation scheme developed by the Local Government Employers. This scheme 
applies to all senior posts paid on locally determined salary points from spinal 

column point 53 and above, incorporating all chief officer posts.  This provides 
assurance that all pay differentials can be objectively justified through the use of 
job evaluation mechanisms which directly establish the relative levels of posts and 

grades according to the requirements, demands and responsibilities of the role.  
 

The posts within the council falling within the definition of ‘chief officers’ are those 
at second tier which is Assistant Director and above and constitutes the council’s 
Senior Leadership Team.   

 
The Assistant Director Skills, Work and Inclusive Economy post has been 

evaluated under the job evaluation scheme for Local Government Chief Officers 
and Senior Managers and sized, scored and ranked accordingly.  The salary 
scale, as determined by the outcome of this exercise, is £72,833 - £80,117 per 

annum in line with Band E of the agreed senior pay structure. 
 

The appointment will be in accordance with the JNC for Chief Officer terms and 

conditions. 
 
6. Vision, values, and leading Salford 

 
The City Mayor has set out his vision for a ‘fairer, greener and healthier Salford for 

all’ and whatever their role our people are all here to make that vision a reality. 
This vision gives our people direction and a shared sense of purpose. 

 
The City Mayor has set out his priorities for achieving a fairer, greener, and 
healthier Salford ‘the Great 8’ which are: 

 
Tackling poverty and inequality: 

 Ensuring poverty prevention and reduction is at the heart of everything we do 
in the city. 

 Support people currently experiencing poverty through continuation of 

personalised care to the most vulnerable residents. 
 Work to reduce inequalities wherever they exist. 

 
Tackling health inequalities and providing the best possible care: 

 Work to become a Marmot City. 

 Ensuring access to mental health care and support. 
 Ensuring children and young people are safe and have the best possible start 

in life. 

Page 8



 7 

 Strengthening our unified model of health and care, including a valued care 
workforce. 
 

Affordable housing and reducing homelessness:  

 Continue efforts to reduce homelessness and rough sleeping. 

 Strengthen our commitment to provide decent and affordable social housing 
including through the council’s own ethical housing company Dérive. 

 

Promoting transport and digital connectivity:  

 Support the development of the cycling and walking network across the city. 

 Lobby for further investment in a connected public transport system, including 
extension of the GM Metro-link and GM bus franchising. 

 Invest in our digital infrastructure and skills to ensure no resident or business 

in the city is digitally excluded. 
 

Skills and education (A Learning City):  

 Develop skills pipelines and a connected education system to link people to 
new job opportunities in productive growth sectors in the city. 

 Supporting young people to continue with their education in high quality and 
safe settings. 

 Support the transition of young people and recently unemployed into decent 
and sustainable jobs, focusing on growth sectors in the Salford and GM 
economy. 

 Support business development and innovation for the creation of new jobs and 
employment opportunities. 

 

Creating an economy for all: 

 Maintain confidence to invest and develop in the city, focussed on our 

strategic opportunities and sectors, and provide foundations for inclusive 
economic growth. 

 Maximise the social value and impact from our role as an anchor institution, 

including by prioritising local suppliers and local supply chains wherever 
possible, and committing to a strengthened Salford Social Value Alliance and 

10% Better Campaign. 
 Supporting the development of alternative economic models and community 

wealth building to support residents to benefit from the local economy 

 Lobby for a fair funding settlement for Salford to guarantee effective public 
services. 

 
Tackling the climate emergency: 

 Secure investment and development in green spaces and green infrastructure 

across the city, including electric vehicle charging points, affordable energy 
 Encourage active travel and improvements in air quality. 

 Invest in green skills and green economic sectors to strengthen the city’s 
future economic resilience. 
 

Creating vibrant places and spaces: 

 Deliver commitments within the city’s new Culture Strategy, including creation 

of a Salford Heritage Commission to support the city’s vibrant cultural assets 

Page 9



 8 

 Ensure local access to, and benefit from, the city’s world class cultural assets 
such as the Lowry and RHS Bridgewater. 

 Build on the city’s strong voluntary, community and social enterprise sector to 

build resilient community support and ensure Salford is a supportive and safe 
place. 

 Create and support vibrant neighbourhood centres at the heart of their local 
community. 

 

To achieve this vision and deliver the priorities we have a strong set of values - 
pride, passion, people, and personal responsibility which capture the spirit and 

ambition of the city and inform the way we operate.  The values influence our 
choices, behaviours and how we make decisions and deliver services. Living the 
values day in and day out creates a supportive environment which allows all our 

people to thrive and contribute to achieving our vision.  The Spirit of Salford 
represents our culture, our social conscience and pride – our organisation is 

about people and the communities that we serve. We are renowned for our 
resilience and coping positively with change, we make the most of opportunities. 

 

The #LeadingSalford leadership framework has been developed with clear 
expectations of leaders and managers in Salford. This framework is intended to 

address the issue of clarity of expectations in terms of how leaders and managers 
operate and their behaviours. It is underpinned by a consistent approach to 
leadership development and has been designed to enable everybody to 

understand what it means to be a leader in Salford.  
 

Effective leaders and managers are critical to the delivery of excellent services, 

partnership working, our commitment to engagement and co-production and 
innovation in local government.  Therefore, investment in our leaders and 

developing their skills is essential.   
 

The framework is based on values-based leadership and describes the behaviour 

required for leadership of self, others, outcomes, and the way forward. There are 
four main components to the framework - leadership behaviours, management 

skills, development activities and our values. The values-based leadership 
element is at the heart of the framework to ensure that all our leadership 
expectations are grounded in modelling and embedding the values in the way 

managers and their teams work. Effective leaders are values driven and 
trustworthy, their behaviour is consistent and ethical, and they follow through and 

deliver on commitments.  
 

The #LeadingSalford leadership framework and expected behaviours are now the 

cornerstone by which all leadership roles are designed and how we recruit and 
select our leaders. 

 

 

KEY COUNCIL POLICIES:  
 

 

Page 10



 9 

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS: 
 
The recruitment, selection and appointment process will be undertaken in a lawful, 
fair, transparent, and consistent manner in line with our recruitment and selection and 

equal opportunities policies, commitments, and frameworks. Applications are 
welcome from all sections of the community irrespective of race, gender, gender 

reassignment, age, disability, sexuality, religion, or belief. 
 

 

ASSESSMENT OF RISK:  
 

 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by:  
Mary Sutton, Legal Services  

 

The Officer Employment Procedure Rules set out the procedure for the appointment 
of Chief Officers and Deputy Chief Officers.   
 

Workforce Panel can be satisfied that the proposals contained in this report are lawful 
and that the recruitment proposals concerning the Assistant Director are in line with 

Council’s constitution. 
 
Once the recruitment has been concluded, the Annex 1 procedure, whereby the 

Assistant Director of HROD writes to each Member of the Cabinet to give them the 
right to object to the appointment before it takes effect, will also apply to the 

appointment to both posts. 

 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: Joanne Hardman, Chief Finance 

Officer 

 

The current maximum cost of a post at this level, including on-costs, is £0.106m. The 
funding for this post is included in a bid for resources which will be considered as part 

of the budget process reflecting the priority placed on the delivery of the Inclusive 
Economy and Skills and Employment strategies. Whilst bids for external funding will 
be pursued, this will be a competitive process and it should be assumed that, at least 

in the short term, costs will fall upon the council’s revenue budget. As part of any bid 
for revenue resources it is anticipated that a business case will be developed which 

identifies the costs and benefits of investment. 

 

PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: N/A 
 

Page 11



 10 

HR IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: 
Are contained within the body of the report. 

 
 

CLIMATE CHANGE IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: 
 

 

OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED: 
 

 

CONTACT OFFICER: Samantha Betts Assistant Director HR & OD 

E-mail: Samantha.betts@salford.gov.uk  
 

 

WARDS TO WHICH REPORT RELATES: 
 

Page 12

mailto:Samantha.betts@salford.gov.uk


 

Assistant Director – Skills, Work & Inclusive 

Economy 

Directorate: Place Reporting to: Strategic Director Place 

Grade: Local Scale Band E   Salary: £73,833 - £80,117 

Location:  Flexible    Hours: 36.00 

About the role 

 Contribute to the corporate leadership of the Council, operating as a member 
of the directorate and wider council senior leadership team, providing strategic 

leadership, direction, and service expertise. 
 

 Provide clear leadership to the city’s skills and work agenda leading the 
development and implementation of a circa £1.5 million per annum 
programme taking responsibility for external income generation and 

submission of funding bids. 
 

 Through a sector led approach build relationships with businesses to identify 

job opportunities and skills requirements for current and future jobs creating 
sustainable pathways, including education and skills development, to connect 
Salford residents with jobs.  

 

 Ensure that the City's growth sectors have the skills and talent that they need 
to grow and that employers across the city are actively engaged in 
contributing to skills development, skills utilisation and offering career 

pathways and progression. 
 

 To drive improvements in opportunities, skills provision, and employability at 
all levels throughout the city through the implementation of the Employment & 

Skills Strategy. 
 

 Lead the development and delivery of strategies to support inclusive growth 

and regeneration delivering high quality employment opportunities for local 
people. 

 

 Develop strategic relationships with partners, local communities, businesses, 

and key stakeholders working together to build a more inclusive and green 
economy for the benefit of local people.    
 

Page 13



 

 Play a lead role in supporting the continued economic development and 
growth of the city maximising opportunities and potential to attract and nurture 

quality local employment for Salford people in future industries. 
 

 As part of the council’s senior leadership team ensure that skills, work, and 

inclusive growth are integral across all services to develop broader 
organisational capability to deliver our ambitions as detailed in the Inclusive 
Economy Strategy. 

 

 Accountability for the effective leadership of all skills, work, and business 

teams, ensuring cohesive provision that is aligned with organisational 
priorities and that available resources are used to best effect. 
 

 To ensure that data and intelligence is at the heart of decision 

making and enhances the effectiveness of the council and key partnerships 
by forecasting and interpreting data. 

 

 Ensuring robust and effective corporate governance, financial, performance 
and risk and assurance systems and processes are in place across the 

service. 
 

 Embed positive leadership behaviours within a continually developing cultural 
environment, inspiring direct reports, and others to uphold the Council’s 

strong values and leadership behaviours. 
 

 Lead and achieve a people-centred, values based and inclusive 

organisational culture that promotes innovation and creativity, nurtures growth 
and focuses on developing and maximising potential to improve services.    

 

 Through personal example, commitment and action develop an inclusive, 
supportive, and constructive environment where everyone is treated with 

dignity and respect and diversity is valued in the workplace, in service delivery 
and communications. 

 

 Undertake duties as part of the Emergency Planning and business continuity 

rota.   

Key outcomes 

 Provide visible, strategic leadership for the Skills, Work & Inclusive Economy 

Service, which embodies the City Council’s leadership behaviour framework, 

and develops a culture that promotes innovation and creativity in service 

transformation and delivery. 

 Develop a strong city-wide partnership between education and skills providers, 

employers, and businesses, as well as the city council and other anchor 

institutions across the city.   

Page 14



 

 Drive the skills and employability agenda, strengthening connectivity across the 

council, developing relationships with businesses and education partners to 

ensure sustainable growth to deliver key strategies including the Inclusive 

Economy and Anti-Poverty strategies.  

 Work with partners and communities to promote a whole systems approach to 

drive effective action on social and economic inclusion and tackling inequalities.  

 Support the delivery of inclusive regeneration programmes for sustainable 

economic growth attracting investment and building community wealth to create 

jobs and opportunities for all. 

 Lead the delivery of the three core outcomes identified to achieve our ambitions 

for Salford as a learning city. 

o Improving and increasing the quality of local jobs – focussing on the 

foundational economy, and sectors such as hospitality, leisure, retail, 

and including entry level opportunities in the public and VCSE sectors.  

Together with the GM growth sectors in advanced manufacturing, digital 

and health tech innovation, construction which provide opportunities to 

invest in an increased supply of quality local jobs for local residents with 

the appropriate technical skills.  

o Improve the capacity and ability of the local education and 

technical skills providers to engage with academically vulnerable 

young people and low (or no) skilled adults to re-engage them in learning 

in order to enter into sustainable and good quality employment.  

o Progressive improvements in the skills profile of Salford residents.  

Measured by year-on-year reductions of people across all age groups 

with no qualifications, together with a progressive increase of people with 

higher level (Level 3 or 4) qualifications.  

 Foster key strategic relationships across the Greater Manchester Combined 

Authority (GMCA), locally, regionally, and nationally.  Influencing and inspiring 
stakeholders, establishing credibility to realise new opportunities. 

 Develop the new target operating model for skills and work through our 
established change methodology and co-design with those impacted by the 

changes and lead the realignment/redesign of the functions to best deliver the 
ambitions and priorities. 

 Recruit and develop the staff team to deliver the key priorities identified. 

 Build partnership with employers working closely with the Executive Support 
Member for Skills, Work and Business. 

 Further develop and deliver the strategy and ambitions by building the 
partnership triangle arrangements. 

 Lead a people centred and values-based culture where people are 

encouraged to learn and develop, inspiring employees and providing senior 

management support within the division, motivating, and supporting all 

employees to achieve their full potential. 

 Develop and maintain a workforce with the capacity and capability to deliver 

on the agenda for the service and develop a culture that promotes innovation 

and creativity in service transformation and delivery. 

Page 15



 

 Plan, monitor and review the service budget, providing ongoing scrutiny to 

ensure that services are provided within budget and show value for money 

and are effectively managed. 

What we need from you 

 Demonstrable success in delivering outcomes in a lead role for skills, work, 
and economic development within a comparable setting. 

 Experience of working with skills providers in the delivery of training 

programmes and working with businesses to support their training needs and 

recruitment requirements.  

 Knowledge of the skills sector and in advising businesses to develop skills 

levels in local residents and employees. 

 Experience of working with young people and working age adults to develop 

the knowledge, skills, and attributes they need to enter, sustain, and succeed 

in the workplace and to develop in their future careers. 

 Detailed knowledge and understanding of the GM Adult Education Budget 

and Working Well programmes and how to deliver maximum benefit to Salford 

residents and businesses. 

 Proven track record of income generation and successful leadership and 

delivery of submitting and securing funding bids. 

 The ability to drive coordinated working and strategic thinking with partner 

organisations at regional and national levels to ensure that Salford delivers 

our key political, organisational, and strategic priorities. 

 Experience of operating effectively and openly within the democratic process 

with the political acumen and skills to develop productive working 

relationships with elected members that builds respect, trust, and confidence. 

 Ability to develop strong relationships with key stakeholders from a range of 

public and private sector organisations. 

 Successful experience of creating and maintaining effective and influential 

partnerships, working collaboratively at a senior level. 

 A history of promoting and delivering proactive, and innovative solutions to 

deliver inclusive and equitable outcomes to address any inequities that exist. 

 Experience of policy development, interpretation, and implementation in major 

areas of activity. 

 Experience of managing complex situations and information requiring analysis 

and interpretation and the comparison of a range of options. 

 Skilled communicator who communicates with clarity, conviction, and 

enthusiasm both verbally and in written reports and is able to demonstrate 

integrity, create rapport and build trust and confidence. 

 Understand and work within the bigger picture and broader context and able 

to translate overarching plans to a local setting. 

 Experience of successful strategic and operational resource and budget 

management. 

Page 16



 

 Ability to provide visible and supportive leadership, empowering, enabling, 

motivating, and developing the workforce and fostering a positive 

organisational culture. 

 Being open to learning and sharing your knowledge and skills with others; 

providing coaching and support to others to help them achieve their objectives 

and potential. 

 Personal and professional integrity and credibility that establishes respect, 

trust, and confidence. 

 Model and demonstrates the City Council’s values and leadership behaviours, 

creating a shared purpose and positive permission culture that enables 

people to thrive through development, involvement, and well-being. 

 

What we can offer you 

Your ongoing professional development and success in your role is important to us, 

and that is why we provide a variety of learning and development opportunities. 

Within the sections below you will find development options tailored to you which will 

enable you to further develop your existing skills and learn new ones at a pace that 

suits you best. If you are joining us now, your development will form part of ongoing 

discussions with your manager. If you are an existing employee, you should use your 

Personal Development Reviews to discuss your development with your manager and 

create your development journey. It’s important you also take full advantage of any 

informal learning available to you during the course of your work. 

 Developing your leadership skills 

We want to equip our leaders with the knowledge, skills and behaviours 

outlined in our #LeadingSalford behaviour framework. Our aim is to support 

you to lead highly engaged, motivated teams in today’s rapidly changing 

environment. We provide a range of core master classes designed to help you 

meet the expectations that we have of our Salford leaders. In addition, we 

also provide support with the essentials including our Management Essentials 

programme, Health and Wellbeing at Work, Strengths-Based Conversations, 

and Financial Skills for Non-Financial Managers. 

 Online learning  

Develop your knowledge across a wide range of areas through our Me-

Learning platform, with over 200 free courses to choose from. To have the 

best possible start and comply with current legislation, you must complete the 

following modules: Welcome to Salford, Health and Safety in the Office, 

GDPR, Equality Essentials, Safeguarding Children and Adults, and Safer 

Recruitment. You may also benefit from a variety of courses in categories 

such as Business Skills, IT and Project Management which are available to 

learn at your own convenience and pace. 

Page 17



 

 Professional development 

Gain role specific skills and time to learn through a wide range of 

development opportunities. Learn whilst working and get support towards your 

qualification through an apprenticeship standard. Access professional 

development ranging from entry level to master’s type qualifications, including 

achieving a role appropriate qualification. Details can be found on the Institute 

of apprenticeships website. 

 A digital organisation 

 Developing your digital skills 

Our ambition is to ensure that our workforce have the right level of digital 

capabilities needed to be successful. Whatever your current digital abilities 

are, we can provide development ranging from essential workplace skills to 

specialist workplace skills delivered through our Digital Skills Academy using 

both self-directed and guided learning opportunities to enable you to develop. 

Additionally, you can access free online courses through the iDea website. 

Our vision and priorities 

Our vision 

The council has a vision is to create 'A fairer, greener and healthier Salford'. 

To help us achieve this vision we have identified some key priorities to tackle the 

problems people in Salford are currently facing, the Great Eight. 

 

Page 18

http://www.instituteforapprenticeships.org/apprenticeship-standards/
http://www.instituteforapprenticeships.org/apprenticeship-standards/
https://idea.org.uk/


 

 

Our organisation’s values 

To achieve this vision, we have a strong set of values. Pride, Passion, People and 

Personal Responsibility which capture the spirit and ambition of the city and inform 

the way we operate. They influence our choices, behaviours and how we make 

decisions and do things. Living the values day in and day out creates a supportive 

environment which allows us ‘to be the best we can be’ and achieve our vision. To 

explore these in more detail click on the visual. 

 
 

Our leadership behaviours 

As a values-based leader you will: 

 Model the values and embed them into the way your team delivers services. 

 Hold people accountable for demonstrating the values. 

 Respect and care for others, treating everyone fairly, valuing, and welcoming 

diversity, respecting people’s identity, listening and acting on the things 

people say to enable everyone to achieve their full potential. 

 Be honest, taking responsibility for your actions and decisions. 

 Use resources that you are trusted with wisely. 

To lead others you will: 

 Listen to understand, not to defend.  

 Give people the freedom to use their initiative.  

 Provide opportunities for people to discuss and solve problems and issues – 

focussed on learning not blame.  

 Regularly provide coaching and support to others to help them achieve their 

objectives and potential.  

 Appreciate and build on people’s strengths.  

 Motivate, engage, encourage, and inspire others in order to be the best they 

can be. 

Page 19



 

 Build lasting productive relationships with residents, partners, and elected 

officials. 

To lead outcomes you will: 

 Be visible, inject pace, vigour, and purpose.  

 Expect high standards; mediocrity is not acceptable.  

 Take an evidence and whole system approach in making decisions.  

 Maximise technology and models to deliver quicker, easier, better services.  

 Have a digital mindset, fully utilising digital systems, and solutions to deliver 

services efficiently and effectively. 

 Set context and challenging goals that will motivate people to take ownership, 

maximise performance, and develop.  

To build and communicate a vision for the future you will: 

 Be optimistic and ambitious for the city and its people, helping others to 

understand the need to change how we do things.  

 Build strong collaborative relationships to find creative ways to make services 

more sustainable and flexible.  

 Recognise and value the strengths of people and places, taking a strengths-

based approach to make the most of opportunities.  

 Support people through change, in undertaking new things, and taking risks.  

 Take a place and whole system approach in designing, delivering, and 

leading services developing solutions with our partners.  

 Ensure inclusion is integral to service delivery and organisational performance 

and develop a resilient, diverse workforce who reflect the increasing diversity 

of our city.  

 Be optimistic and ambitious for the city and its people, helping others to 

understand the need to transform public services. 

Application guidance 

We are a values-based organisation so reflecting our values or a values-based 

approach in your evidence will support your application. 

The different sections of this role profile are there to give you an understanding of 

the purpose of the role. The ‘what we need from you’ section outlines the minimum 

criteria you will need to meet within your application.  

 

 

Page 20


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the Meeting Held on 28th September 2021
	4 Leadership Appointment
	04 - Role Profile Assistant Director - Skills Work  Inclusive Economy_


